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Prince Edward Island is the smallest province in 

Canada. The Island has a colorful landscape that 

appeals to everyone who sees it. The history of the Island 

has been 	illustrious like the sea that surrounds it. 

Fishermen lived on the Island during the summer 

prior to its initial discovery by the French explorer 

Jacques Cartier on July 1st 1534. The Island name has been 

changed several times. As a French colony from 1534- 

1632 the Island had no significant name, but Samuel 

de Champlain in his explorations named the Island the Isle 

of St Jean in 1632. The Island name changed in 1758 when 

the colony was taken over by the British as they changed 

the name to St Johns Island. However once again the Island 

name changed on February 1st 1799 to what it is called today 

Prince Edward Island. 

This paper will examine the history of one of the small 

communities on Prince Edward Island, Emerald. The early 

origins of the community as well as the current characteristics 

will be discussed. Each of the commercial establishments 

in the early days of Emerald will be included in the analysis 

of the history. The first thing to do in writing the history 

of any community is to locate it on the map. 	
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Lot 67  

In 1764, Samuel Holland surveyed the Island and divided 

it into lots of about 20,000 acres each. At the end of the survey 

there were 67 lots, the largest of which was Lot 67. This lot 

included the area of what is now known as Emerald, Springfield and 

Bradalbane plus many other communities. These lots were given out 

by lottery in July of 1767. 

Lot 67 was given to a man by the name of Robert Moore 

who showed no interest in the land as he never recorded the deed or 

paid the quit rents. Consequently, on November 17, 1781, Lot 67 was 

sold by "auction" to Walter Patterson who was the Governor of the Island 

at the time. After a dispute about his governing with the British 

government, Patterson returned to England in 1787. The lot once again 

changed hands, and Edmund Fanning (newly appointed governor of the 

Island) obtained possession and it remained in Fannings estate until 

the end of the lottery system. The following figure shows the composition 

of the lot when it was surveyed in August of 1809. Emerald was part 

of Lot 67. 

Emerald  

At first a large portion of the land was wilderness but this 

was gradually settled. The land did have its drawbacks for example it 

never touched the water and much of the land was hilly and hard to work. 

Lot 67 has made 
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great progress since that time. Today the lot contains some if 
,444  

of the most productive farm land on the Island. 

The village of Emerald is located in Lot 67 by the 

Dunk River, on the boundary between Prince and Queens County 

at the junction of the Canadian National Railways' Borden lines 

and the main lines from Souris to Tignish. 

The first settlers of the village were: the Maynes, 

the McMahons, the McEntees and the Gillis' on the north side 

of the river. The Clarks, Greens and the Duffys lived on the 

south side of the river. Since that time Emerald has grown ." 

and now has a population of 153 people. 

Emerald was originally called "County Line" as a 

result of the county line that divides Emerald into Prince 

and Queens County. Since that time the main road (Route 232) 

has been called the County Line Road. In 1885 the name was 

changed to Rose Emerald. In 1890 the Rose was droped and 

the community became known as Emerald. Emerald was chosen as 

the name of the village because of the green pastures and the 

significance of the name for the Irish settlers. The following 

page shows the map of County Line in 1880. 

Emerald prospered during the early 1900's. The 

community supported a sawmill, a school, a carriage shop, three 

general stores. two dress shops, a railway station, a dairy 

a bank, a hall, two hotels, a post office and two livery stables. 
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Sawmill 

The sawmill had been used during the 1800's along 

the Dunk River, south of the Thomas Hughes residence. It 

was owned and operated by the Haslem brothers of Springfield. 

Large portions of the land were not settled and contained a 

large amount of heavy lumber. 

A road was cut through the woods from the mill 

to the Haslem brothers homestead. This road was called and 

still is known as the Mill Road, because the road was constructed 

to reach the mill. 

The sawmill provided employment for the new settlers 

in Emerald. During its time, the mill produced much excellent 

lumber. The sawmill ceased to function in 1890 as the lumber 

decreased and the settlers became interested in farming. 

School  

In 1871, a grant of 5 pounds was given to the County 

Line district to build a chool. Nineteen or twenty years later 

a second classroom was added. The first teacher to teach at 

the school was a Miss Hogan form the South Shore. Some of the 

teachers that have taught at the school were Peter F. Hughes, 

Elmer Roberts, Elizabeth Trainor, Margaret MacDonald, Gerald 

McCarthy, J.A.Johnson, Katie Trainor, Phyllis Cairns, Joan Glover, 

Sharon Cash and Lorraine Mulligan. 

The school ceased operation in the 1971-1972 school 
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year because of the Provincial Government's efforts to 

consolidate the smaller schools into a larger school. This 

act meant the end for the Emerald school that had operated 

for one hundred years. The school district had a large 

number of students graduate from it during its years of 

operation. Each student went to the one room school and as 

was the custom at the time:the teacher would teach many grades 

in the same classroom. 

With the addition of the second classroom more students 

could be educated. Most of the students were farmers children 

who came to the school to learn a few of the basics such as 

reading, writing and arithmetic. 

The last graduating class from the Emerald school 

in 1971-1972 consisted of the following students. Leonard 

Croken, Elaine Morrell, Cynthia Mayne, Teresa McSweeney and 
we..? 
*

143 	Kevin Mayne. The school is now closed. The building was 

ea. bought by Clayton Hughes and is used for storage. His son 

oe 
Ronnie Hughes and his family and Mrs Bill Curley have put 

trailers in the school yard. 

As one walks through the school yard one can almost 

hear the sound of the school bell summoning students to class. 

These sounds of yesteryear echo back to us as we stand and look 

at the memories that are staring us in the face. The school 

has been the scene of happy times and it has also produced 

talented and educated people for society. The following page 
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presents a picture of the Emerald School as it appears in 1982. 

EMERALD SCHOOL 

Carrriage Shop  

In the early 1880's a carriage shop was opened 

and operated by Terance Goodwin. This shop was located at the 

present day area of land between Robert McSweeney and Austin 

Trainors. Mr Goodwin repair ed any damage done to the 

carriages. Sometimes there were carriages constructed there 

but it was mostly a repair shop. The shop ceased operation in 
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1916 as the horse and the carriage were replaced by the car. 

Blacksmith Shop  

In 1882, Mr James Power opened a blacksmith shop 

later he went into operation with his son George. Mr Power 

shod many horses in the shop which was an important aspect 

of life in the community. 

Mr Power owned a Massey Harris agency for a number 

of years. The shop ceased operation with the retirement of 

George Power and was torn down in 1972. 

Stores 

There were a number of stores in Emerald. The first 

store was owned by Archibald Ferguson who sold a wide variety 

of items. Mr Ferguson sold his store in 1886 and moved to 

Ottawa. The store was purchased by J.E.Hughes and subsequently 

Albert Craig who moved to Emerald from Freetown. He continued 

to do business until the establishment was destroyed by fire 

in 1913. 

Another store was run by Parnell McMahon and Merdick 

Kennedy. This store was in the house presently owned by 

the late Emmett Clow. 

Peter F. Kennedy built a store on what is known as 

the Hilary Moynagh corner. This store was run by Peter Hughes 

until the early 1900's. The new owners were Vince McQuaid 

Ale Murphy and Harold Murphy. After the store went out of 

business, it was used for storage and was torn down in 1971. 

In 1918, Fidelle Perry built a store which was then 
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bought by Harry Ford who ran the business until 1958 when it 

went out of business, The store was the present day site of 

Elmer Deighan's residence. 

In 1918, Watson Fyfe moved from Stanley Bridge to 

Emerald and expanded the drug store that was constructed by 

Dr McGuigan. The store was sold to the late-Clayton Green 

who operated the store until April of 1976 when the store was 

then rented to Barry and Carol Mayne who operated the store 

until April 30th,1979. 

Stores played an important role in Emerald history. 

People in the community came together for a social chit chat 

and to catch up on the latest gossip while they did their 

shopping. Some of the stores have burned while others were 

closed down as a result of a lack of business. 

The echo of bargains and the stores are gone. The 

stores that once made Emerald a thriving centre are gone. 

Thus yet another aspect of Emerald life has disappeared into 

the past. 1%' 
Po° 

The following page presents a picture of the store 

that was owned by Clayton Green prior to his death. 
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EMERALD STORE 

cr  4 eb P 

Dressmakers Shops  

One of the dressmakers shops was run by Bernard 

Murphy's daughters. This shop turned out many fine dresses 

during its fifty years of operation. The shop was located 

above the Parnell McMahon and Merdick Kennedy store. 

There was another dressmakers shop which was founded 

and operated by Mr Fred Kelly. It was situated in a little 

area which is presently the lawn of Mrs Pauline Trainor. 

Many good and useful dresses were turned out by these excellent 

dressmakers. 
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Many people ordered fine dresses for the numerous 

dances held in the hall and other social events of the time. 

These dress shops played an important role in the time period 

that they existed. These shops are now just another part of 

Emerald's past. 

Telephone  

Emerald had its first private telephone at the home 

of George Mayne Sr. in 1906. Since that year the telephone 

has increased in importance and now there are more than fifty 

telephones in the community. The people of Emerald had the 

old crank phone until the early morning of October the 11th, 

1976 when the dial phone went into operation. 

Electricity  

Electricity cameto Emerald at 10:30 a.m. December 29th 

1950. Since that time electricity has become an essential part 

of everyday life replacing the old kerosene lamp that was so 

well used in the days gone by. 

Dairy Factory  

The Dairy Cooperation was founded in Emerald around 

the year 1895. It did a large business for a number of years 

in the manufacturing of butter and cheese. The first cheesemaker 

in the community was Will Clark. Many communities such as Rose 

Valley, Springfield, Bradalbane and Emerald itself hauled 

milk to the factory. Many people found employment in the 

dairy factory which was always busy processing dairy products 



13 

(cheese and butter) for the people who took their milk there. 

The factory was sold to the Champion family and it was closed 

during the middle part of the 1900's. 

Bank Of Nova Scotia  

The Bank of Nova Scotia opened a branch in Emerald 

in 1913. The Bank did business in Emerald for almost ten 

years. In 1923 a fire destroyed the building and the bank 

moved its branch to Albany. The Bank was located on the 

property which is currently owned by Arthur Lambe. There is 

very little else known about the bank and its short history 

in Emerald. 

The Benevolent Irish Society Hall  

Around the year 1895, a hall was established and 

built by the Benevolent Irish Society. The Hall was used for 

public meetings and other social gatherings. Dances were 

held every two to three weeks and there were people who came 

toN from the surrounding areas. The Society who build the hall 

was quite active and sponsored many interesting events. The hall 

was the scene for several plays andactors would come to 

Emerald to participate. People came from all around to see 

the events that were quite popular. 

The Hall is something which is now only a memory 

for the senior citizens who remember the Hall. It ceased 

operation in the mid 1900's and fell into disrepair and 

was demolished in 1972. 
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In 1976 a ReeCentre was constructed and has been 

used for numerous activities such as dances, showers and 

suppers. The Centre is also used for the annual Emerald 

Day celebrations. Below is a picture of the Rec Centre. 

EMERALD REC CENTRE 

Hotels 

In the late 1800's, a hotel was established which 

was owned and operated by Mr. John Hughes. It was later 

purchased by Mrs Johnny Croken. The hotel served many people 

that were travelling by train in the years of its operation. 

The hotel was destroyed by fire in 1932. 

Another hotel was operated by Mrs Austin Murphy during 
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the same time period. The hotels complimented the busy train 
A ••/* 1401,C 

station. The owner of the land that Vie'  hotel wac on is 

Mrs Catherine Croken. 

These hotels provided the weary traveller with rest 

between trains. Usuallly the travellers found their way 

to the hotels to get some refreshments or a light snack. 

These travellers were accomodated in grand style and left 

Emerald with happy memories of their stay here. 

Women's Institute of Emerald  

This organization held its first meeting on November 

13th,1925 at the home of Mrs Austin Murphy. The Institute had 

many special activities,, such as catering to weddings, taking 

care of the schools welfare/ health supplies and organizing 

parties for the community. 

(0° 	
On September 23rd,1978 at a meeting held at Mrs 

4, Leeland Mayne, the ladies of the Institute decided to dissolve 
yel" 

'7 ,4y the group due to a lack of interest. 

r" Post Office  

The first post master was Mr Archie Ferguson. He was 

replaced by Mr J.W. Hughes who in turn was suceeded by 

Frank Murphy who held the post until his death in 1935. 

Percy Murphy was appointed postmaster and he served 

in that position until the post office was closed on April 

21st,1970. At that time there were three route: .sthat came out 



16 

from Emerald serving 	Newton, Springfield, Norboro, 

Grahams Road, Clinton and New London. When the post office 

closed there were two post offices that supplied Emerald with 

its mail which were Kensington and Kinkora. Below is a 

picture of the post office that served Emerald for many years. 

EMERALD POST OFFICE 

Livery Stable  

The livery stable in Emerald was built by Mr J.W. 

Hughes and run by Mr Johnny Croken. It was situated on the 

property presently owned by St Clair Croken. The stable had 

all sorts of carriages and horses to cater to the travelling 
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public. Travellers used the stable quite frequently in their 

travels. Another reason could have been because liquor was sold 

over the counter. 

Mr John Canning operated a livery stable on the present 

site of Albert Rowe's home. This too was of great importance 

to the travelling public. 

The livery stables played an important role in 

the history of Emerald but as the automobile became more 

popular the livery stable became obselete. Another part of 

Emerald's past slipped away due to modernization. 

Doctor 

The first practicing physician in Emerald was Doctor 

Michael Wall during the teens of the 1900's. After Dr Wall 

stopped practicing in Emerald, Doctor Johnson began his 

practice. Dr Johson was replaced by Doctor McGuigan. He 

built a drug store where the old Clayton Green store was 

situated. Dr McGuigan sold numerous items at the drug stores 

be 

	

	since he left in 1922 there has been no practicing physician 
in Emerald. 

Canadian National Railway Station  

As shipping of produce such as potatoes and as business 

flourished, a station house was erected in 1887. In 1906, 

across the railway tracks from the old station a new double 

station house was built. 
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The reason for the construction of the double station 

house was that there was usually one end of the station 

for the males and the other for the females. The men liked 

to smoke and chew tobacco which the women detested hence the 

need for their own end of the station. 

Following is the list of persons who served as the 

stationmasters. 

Mr Byrne in 1887 (from Georgetown) 

Mr McMahon in 1887 

Mr Arthur Seamen and MrThomas Arbing 

Mr James Allen 

Mr Albert Rowe 1956-1966 

Mr Gerard Allen 1966- 

The Station was the establishment that caused 

Emerald to grow and prosper. Emerald Junction is the main 

shipping station for potatoes / as farmers come from all 

around Emerald to have their potatoes shipped to nearby ports 

or markets. 

Passenger trains played an important role in the 

community. People came and went, some staying for only 2-3 

hours while others stayed at the nearby hotels until the 

train arrived to take them to their destination. 

The automobile slowly reduced the amount of travel 

on the passenger train as it was a much faster means of 

transportation and one was able to chose your own departure 
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t 
and arrival times. 	 tg 

t 

In 1967, the CN was forced to cease passenger train 

service on the Island and except for the few people who used 

it regularly the train was not missed. Yet another part of 

Emerald's past slipped out of our grasp. 

The station stood vacant for nearly 10 years until 

early in 1980 the CN decided that since the Station was not 

being used, it would be demolished. The community reaction 

was swift. 

There wasacommunity meeting held on September 19th, 

1980 and it was decided that the community would try to save 

the station. One of the well known residents of the community 

Bennett Deighan said:"The train station is the only identity 

we have left here in Emerald". With this remark the community 

united to save the station. The following two pages show 

excerpts from the Guardian on how the community planned 

to fight to save the station. 

A committee was set up with the following members: 

Mrs Bernice Deighan, Patsy Mulligan, Elmer Mulligan, Bill 

Trainor (treasurer) Catherine Croken (secretary) and 

Herman Mayne (president). The committee was to decide what 

would be done with the station. 

After much discussion, the people of Emerald decided 

the station would be transformed into a small convenience store 



MLA Leone Baintall cuts 
the ribbon to officially opal 
the Emerald Station aher 
the stationwu renovated 

by the community of 
Emerald. The station will 
be an artifact room. 
general store and mere" 

Don room for children .  
Holding the ribbon are Her-
man Mayne LErr. chair-
man of the restoration com- 

mIttee end Pauline 
Trainor, long-time resident 
of Emerald 1311443-1114) 

DLO 
 

CN STATION RE-OPENS, 

Errierald Days Open----  
EMERALD -People are 

the most important factor. in 
getting tia through le dif-
ficult times ahead. L PEI 
President Peter Meincke 
said dunng the official open-
ing of Emerald Days here 
Sunday 

The land of thing you are 
doing here in this community 
gives me the message that 
all is well as P.E I ." Or 
idemensan 

We noted tht pnichne by 
Ose community of the old 
railway station which (tad 

been slated for demolition 
but instead. is now being put 
to good use 
INVOLVEMENT 

The university too he 
said. is trying to get involved 
in community development 
through such outlets as the 
Island Community Theatre 

"There is a great deal of 
concern about centralize-
/ion. Munk More ts 

ao Mink far ana mon ta 
the large woe." the UM 
president said "The land of 
things going on here today 

show very clearly the high 
degree of vitality and SW-
ciss that can occur here " 

The 
	

al waling 
anon was cut by Miss 
Kinkora, Michelle Gauthier 
of Emerald. 'misted by one 
of the youngest residents of 
the community Tara Hughes 
daughter of Brian and 

Leone Hughesi and one of 
,the commusity's oldest 
residents. Bennett Deli hen 

The IS-year-old Mr 
Delghan termed the people 
in Emerald as the best 

class of citizens on P.E.I " 
and Miss Gauthier hailed the 
community as "the heart of 
the Island." 

The three days of 
festivities featured a 
ceremonial ribbon cutting to 
officially open the Or 
railway station by Queens 
1st MLA Leone Bagnall, 
hayrides. a bicycle rodeo. 
dal carriage parade. Jed 
entertainment supplied Dy 
area musicians Suppers 
were served Sunday night 
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[-Group Plans Proposal 
JUNti ION — A funnel nod' uPgreelli but 

prom:sea on the future of the old the binding is In good thane 
railway Mahon 10 tonedian tit 11.T Mae 
%awn in the near future will 	the station was bull In the 

de preseened from a canons 111:0l end Mewed the first its 

cometiltee from Emerald tied which eta Iv-1W Jest 

Jeaelleta says the cochairman 
al the csosmitiee 

Bill Trainor said a meeting 
had recently attracted 31 pen 
elley or a 'pre enter from 
MOW It ireey family living In 
tat anntimity 

Me mid the proposal must be 
prennetee by a Sept M 
doedlin eel by UN The cane 

had planned to 

tie Mk oft any Oman on 
1 ihe 

 
Mang at the request of 

the department al carthuantly 
Malian tourism. 

Mn. Trainer said a camber ol 
Wm one disowned includum 
bersungabsnowel new nal 
Mop, Muter* noire, for youth. 
stnntisconiative museum or a 
ant 
*ANIMA 

One pageant was selected 
and well be tan before Lb 
said la Trainor He declined 
is say what It you. explaming 

beea staeLit hret 
menption 

, legt caesium is also work 
log fla applyug for a Minced 
Itegeriment assaatance 
gram grant with a deodlthe 
taw this month II eueneslut 
We grant would provide,  Nome 

the sishan 
ItuarfliroZtions tor t h. in. 
nun Witty the bulldthe to ttw 
toolgnun+1 ■ or leasing It. 
depending on the proposal 
Preatoted said Mr 'tram*, 

The cochairman said the 
rot seed repairs. 'WIN re,  
metes If required and the 

*crow Itw track& Mr Trainor 
geld the cittsenbwant to kW" 

as much history as poestbie 
associated with the station 

He enplaned Fianna June. 
lion was the site for all train 
front Borden heeding east to 
latarlottelosm or won to Sum. 

mein& Motels, stores and 
ether tunnels aitabitehrnests 
were located in the village at 

anteslidi the old simian, until ow time to handle eh the  

znillenannielle.11-40-Aeu emit -apeimosere tr  tf c 
Thirty are looking mum 

Mere enthustast lc about sav 
Ina the station, added Mr 
Tram 

as L u 
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TRAM engineer lathe 
eighan LEVI and his tin-
e tit year old Bennett 
eighan talk in trait ol a 

train in bmerald unction 
Area residents have Joined 
tomes in an effort to save the 
old railway station in 

EMERALD JUNCTION RAILWAY STATION 

a Guardian Charlottetown Tires Se t 30 1980-3 

"ONLY IDENTITY WE HAVE LEFT HERE" 

Emerald Junction Fighting For Old Railway Station 
that when the first train pulled 	

- 	 vaareweillardeVii,e F""1.r because fa comolidation and By BILL atebt IRE 
EMERALD JUNCTION -

Residents of Emerald Junction 
and area have Joined tweet In 
an effort to save their railway 
station a budding which * 
year old Bennett Deighan says 

is the only identity we have 
left here .  

The rethink),  and Emerald 
have always been dimly 'den. 
tilled ever since the first tracks 
were laid in the late IBM. Mid 
Mr.  Deighan, the oldie rest. 
d'Pht Irving in the village. 

1he western tine from Sum. 
merstde and the eastern from 
Charlottetown Join at Emerald 
Even today two freight trains 
make a double trip through 
each day and there is still • full 
time station agent on duty 
NEW 111. FRE: 

But the agent works out of ■ 
new oltice built next to the old 
station C.N had planned to tear 
down the old station built in 
i9I7 but Mr Deighan said 
villagers protested and suc -
ceeded in having these plans 
delayed until a proposal could 
Its brought forward teMhe the 
historic structure 1,Ainual 
other businesses closed or limn 
down the station house with 
IR waiting rooms tor men and 
women and others is the last 

Emerald Junction a der remaining piece of Sutton 
Mr Deighan terms the old dealing with the trains in the 
Mukha "the only identity village. states Mr lisripOian 
we have lett here 	 - .sty lather used to 4e41 ate 

students are bused to Kinker. 
while Emerald is now a rural 
route for hinkora post office 
flies e was never • church in 
the"errtegenedeelluele mewl 
always used to live here along 
witha doctor 

lief ore the advent al the 
diesel engines trains were 
powered by skam produced by 
burning coal, says Mr 
beighan His lather worked tar 
ln years keeping the tanks I ull 

The old station bsulj, whoa 
toe first tracks were TIOS -wwc 
torn down in Mr and the pre 
sent slalom was built across 
the track, Al this time, or 
stout the close ol the first 
World War. that the shill was 
made from narrow gauge 
tracks to the modern vide 
gauge 

Mr 	Deighan says he 
remember, Lerman prisoners 
W war laying down a third 
track lo accomodate modern 
trains. 'I he wide gauge was laid 
• NI from Harden to Summer- 

passenger trains Emerald was side and I harlialdown and it 
a benftlIng Wife tanTrtnintee.150 .-Rinirrier 
panned qui There was a 
blacksmith thop, large general 
store. Dank carriage shop. 
cheese lactory two room 
school post oilier hotel and 
boardinghouse 

All are gone now and 11w• 
community doiNn t even boast 
a store its' ,chool is closed  

memories 	; 	Me 	Since the old station was 
ars, two  es...; be per 	closed same 1.0 years ago it has 

ppm e ws- 	• • ins swill keen vacant and idle hub plans 
ste stnivis 	 and to demolish the building has 
nom w1Ill:J 	• I. 	 and fey sported villagers into action 
10 shio 1. • 	 The station could be turned 

Hr ..if 	 au get 	into a tourist attraction and 

snow this is 'item she the rain also provide a much needed 
we got It 	....ironer there store, rays Mr taeighan II 

could tie i 	•••. 1011111114 I could also be a steam 'rain 

hear it is • • 	• n!, 	mums^ nr• m nn • youth ten 

into Emerald people almost 
went through the walls with 
fright because of the noise. -  
cbarkfte Mr Deighan .  

His lather worked for C N 
part time, his duty being to 
keep the big water tank tilted 
for the steam engines to load 
up 

Mr Deighan said the old sta 
tion was closed when LW took 
off the passenger trains same 
years Aso Woes aoSs late 
OeSsaaggers gt oxiagetions in 
Amherst 

He blames the automobile for 
the demise ol the passenger 
trains 'Cars killed the 
passenger trains 

He said 40 years ago trains 
were still a convenient way to 
travel For SI 40 return, a per 

 could catch the noon train 
for Charlottetown, do his 
businma and be back in 
Emerald in time to do the barn 
work, recalls Mr Deighan 
ii%( P. ISIMPAIM.S1•01 

In the has day of the 

castern slot western sr, to 
toe changed oy-er. head 

Ite also stated Emerald was 
kev loading area for potatoes 

out now moist Ut the [stand crop 
is shipped out in frocks 
S\IIW HEM 

Winters 	with 	Iteays 
',rows st 0i-rns also bra.. loci 

tre 
_Al*-said a committee formed 

to save the station has applied 
lot a federal great to restore 

the building and the coramAtee 
hopes to buy thi station from 
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and a landmark for the village. In the fall of 1980, the 

committee applied for a government grant to refurnish the 

station. 

February 1981 work began on the station. There was 

much work to be done such as new wiring. The structure was 

painted inside and out, the roof was shingled and the floor 

was restored. In the early part of 1982 the work was 

completed. 

On July 5th,1982, the convenience store and the 

historical section of the station were officially opened. 

The store was run by two people in the community Catherine 

Croken and Dorothy Moynagh. The store has a few shelves of 

groceries and a small counter where they serve hamburgers, 

hotdogs and submarine sandwiches. The historical section 

has many reminders of the past such as tickets from the 

early 1900's which were found during the renovations. There 

is also a record book of the train's arrival and departures, 

an old lantern and an old telegraph. There are other items 

that remind the people of Emerald and its visitors about 

Emerald's past. 

Then on a sunny afternoon on July 24th,1982 the station 

was officially opened . Most of the community was present 

as well as visitors from other parts of the Island and even 

some from Alberta. There were several speeches made by the 

people on the committee and others who had worked at the 
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station in the past and Carol Mayne 	gave a brief history 

of the station. Leone Bagnall First Queens MLA officially 

cut the ribbon to open the station. 

The following excerpt from the Guardian reports on 

the details. 

In the fall on September 26th,1982 the store and the 

station closed its doors for the winter months in the hopes 

of opening again in 1983. Below is a picture of the station 

as it looks in 1982. 

EMERALD STATION 

The station played a very important role in Emerald's 

history. Passenger trains have disappeared from the village 
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CN TRAIN PASSING THROUGH EMERALD STATION 

WOODLAND VIEW FARM TOURIST HOME 
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and trains themselves hardly stop any more. The station faced 

demolition but was saved by the people of Emerald. The station 

was and is a reminder to us of the important role the 

station played. This part of Emerald's history was saved 

and would not be lost as much of Emerald's history has been. 

The map on the following page shows how Emerald looked 

during the early part of the 1900's. 

Woodland View Farm Tourist Home  

Today Emerald has only one business, not including 

the farms in the area. This business is the tourist home 

which is owned and operated by Mr and Mrs Leeland Mayne. 

The business began in 1975 and has flourished ever 

since. The Maynes have had guests from nearly all corners 

of the globe, from Europe, Japan, New Zealand and of course the 

United States and Canada. 

The people who have visited the home have left with a 

new kind of experience. They learned what farming was like 

by participating in farm activities. They have had many laughs 

on the farm. 

Some people who visited are now considered family 

coming back each year for picnics and to help with the farm 

chores. 

Mr and Mrs Mayne have made many new friends because of 

their business. They have had long talks with tourists over 
A Vi 
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The Maynes enjoy their business and have hopes to 

operate for many years to come. Given the kindness and 

hospitality, their business will continue to succeed. 

This completes the assessment of the commercial 

establishments of Emerald however this ignores one of the main 

foundations of the entire community that of farming. 

Farming History of Emerald  

Some of the first settlers in Emerald were farmers. 

They had to clear the land to begin their new farms. Tree 

stumps had to be pulled out or burned. Days of backbreaking 

labour were spent clearing enough land to farm. Life here 

was difficult as people had to walk a great distance to get 

water. Money was not abundant in these times. Farmers barely 
va 
sruvived the cold long winter months but they survived and 

struggled along coping with their difficulties. 

The women made all of the clothing for their families 

working long hours, mending and making clothes and preparing 

meals for the family. They also helped with the harvest and 

prepared food for the winter. 

There was ususally a great deal of visiting done during 

this time. They, as neighbours, helped one another during 

the harvest and they made sure their neighbours were doing 

well. The people were happy and as one Emerald resident 

suggested%"Maybe they were happier than the people of today 
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... A little bit of work never hurt anybody." 

The crops grown on the small farms were basically 

hay, grain and potatoes. Each farm consisted of at least one 

cow to supply the family with milk, a horse was used for 

travel and work and some sheep to provide clothing made from 

the wool. 

The method that was used to take in the hay is 

quite different from what is done today. First it was cut 

with a mower. Then it was raked into rows known as. windrows 

by a wooded rake. These windrows were collected into piles 

and put on a wagon and taken into the barn where the hay 

was pitched on the floor. This was a great deal of work 

for the farmers but they did it with the help of their 

neighbours and horses. Many days were spent on the hay crop 

trying to bring it in before the fall. 	Nowadays the hay 

is cut by a tractor driven mower. 
U& 

Then the hay is abled and the bales go into the barn. 

It is not uncommon to take in ipoo bales per day. 
Grain was another crop that was grown in Enerald. The grain 

was cut with with a sickle and in later years the cradle 

was used to cut the grain from the straw. The cradle cut 

the grain and gathered it into a reaper. This fastened to 

a scythe and could cut a swathe from frou to six feet wide. 

When the grain dried it was hauled by a drag sleigh to the 

threshing floor. Here the sheeves were thrown loosely on 
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on the floor. The flail (two long peices of wood fastened 

together by a leather tong) was then used to thrash the 

grain. The straw was then raked and the grain was gathered 

from the floor. The grain was cleaned by someone facing the 

wind and pouring the grain from one vessel to another and 

was subsequently ground at the North Granville mill. 

The flail was replaced by a horse power threshing 

machine. The drum or cylinder was propelled by the horse 

walking on the ground around in a circle. After that the tread 

mill was proven to be more superior. The mill had an endless 

floor of 8 inch plank and the horse walks around on the planks. 

The motions propels the fly wheels connecting the belts to the 

machine. 

After the cradle came the reaper which dropped the 

sheaf inbpund. Next came the binder which thrashes the 

grain in the field with a blower attached and run by a 

tractor. 

Today a combine is used to do this job. The combine 

thrashes the grain and puts it into a hopper, nd when the 

hopper is full the oats are put into a grain box, then an 

auger carries it into a bin. The straw is left out in the 

field and baled if needed. 

Potatoes were another crop grown and harvested in 

Emerald. The first means was by fork, then the potatoes were 
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ploughed out by a horse4rawn plough. Then a digger came and 

picked up the potatoes from the soil and ran them on a/ chain 

and dropped them on the ground and they were then picked up. 

Each worker had his own section. 

Later the potato picker was invented and it was pulled 

behind the digger and the potatoes were bagged from the machine. 

Today the potato combine can dig as many as eight rows at at 

time. The potatoes rise on the machine where they are graded 

and rocks and grass are removed by the workers. The potatoes 

then go into bulk boxes and then are put into storage areas. 

The potatoes are hauled to the plant in New Annan or 
1 eol 

shipped by boat to other parts of Canada and the world. 
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Homes and the Land in Emerald 1982  

At present there are 48 families in Emerald. We 

shall trace the houses and land in Emerald. The map on 

the following page illustrates the structures in Emerald 

presently. 

The land owned by Austin Trainor was owned by 

Wellington Haslam who sold it to Thomas Hughes. Spencer 

Hughes bought the land from Thomas and when Spencer moved 

to Toronto he sold the land to Gerard Gauthier and the farm 

to his brother Clayton. The mill that the Haslams had is 

still on the Gauthiers' lot. 

The farm owned by St Clair Croken Junior was owned by 

James McDonald. Mr McDonald also owned the land that 

belonged to Mr James Power and the McMahons. One of the lots 

is now owned by Austin Trainor and the other is owned by 

the Clows. 

Parnell McMahon bought a lot and sold it to Gordon 

Murphy who sold it to Madge Clow who in turn sold it to 

Albert Rowe. Joe McDonald sold his farm to Maurice Croken. 

After Croken's death, the land was purchased by St Clair 

Croken Sr and then by St Clair Croken Jr. After his marriage 

in 1969 another son Arnold Croken built a house on part of the 

land directly across from the site of the old hall. 

The farm owned by St Clair Croken Sr was formerly 
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owned by John Croken who gave it to his son Edward and 

after his death the farm was taken over by St Clair Croken 

Sr. 

Frank Murphy ran a post office in the house which he 

sold to Jack Cash and the house is presently owned by Cash's 

daughter and her husband HilaIyMoynagh. 

Fidelle Perry came to Emerald and started a store 

which was purchased by Harry Ford. After he retired Mrs 

Leslie Trainor bought the house. The house and lot formerl y 

owned by Austin Murphy is now owned by Mrs Catherine Croken. 

The house next to it was owned by Mrs Frank Murphy 

at one time. The house next to it was built by Joseph 

Hughes and after his death the house was given to his daughter 
"met. , C• 

W“N  
Lorraine Caseley. F.E. Murphy owned the land prior to 

Elmer Mulligan • Before Mr Mulligan, Mr John Noonan and Mr 

Charles McCarville owned the house. 

The house next to it was built by Mr James Allen and it 

is now owned by his son Gerard Allen. 

The lot owned by Robert Mulligan was owned by Peter 

F. Hughes, then his son Carroll who sold it to Mrs Neil Croken. 

The late Pius Croken bought the lot and sold it to Mr Robert 

Mulligan. 

The next site is the Rec Centre. The land was 

donated to the community by Mrs Alice Hughes. The next home 
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is that of Gerard Gauthiers which was mentioned previously. 

The house owned by Robert McSweeney was built by 

Mr Craig around 1898 and it was sold to Joseph White who later 

sold it to his son James. James was the owner prior to 

Mr McSweeney. 

Tne next home to this is Junior Mulligan's and then 

Elizabeth Trainor's which was owned by Tom Trainor. 

Fred Jones house is next door but now is vacant as 

Mr Jones has left Emerald. The next lot is owned by Mrs 

Betty Nicholson and her son Brian. 

The house now owned by Upton Jones was owned by Emmett 

Moynagh who sold it to Harold McCourt who sold it to Mr Jones. 

The house across the road was owned by Jack Clow 

who sold it to Ray Goodwin and then to the present owner Edward 

Rafferty. 

The Deighan residence was formerly owned by Will 

Deighan then it was given to Jack Deighan and then to Bennett 

Deighan who has given it to his son Loyola Deighan. 

The farm owned by Reginald Smith was owned by his 

father Benny Smith. The farm next to this was owned by Alex 

Gillis then Jim Gillis and finally Dan Gillis. After his 

death, his sister Patricia sold the land to Campbell and 

Burns." 

The farm owned by Aeneas McEntee was owned by Pat 
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McEntee and then John McEntee. They also owned what is now 

the James Mayne farm. 

Herman Mayne sold most of his farm to James Mayne and 
1440,1  

James has purchased a mobile home and now resides on the land. 

The farm formerly owned by Earl McCarville is now 

owned by George Mayne son of Herman Mayne. Before McCarville 

owned it the home was owned by Tommy McCarville. 

Further up the road is the home of Fenton Mayne who 

inherited the land from his father George Mayne Senior. 

The farm and residence now owned by Mr Leeland Mayne 

was owned by his father George who had obtained it from his 

father John. Beside the Leeland Mayne home, his son Barry has 

built his own house. 

The farm owned by Jim Sinclair was formerly owned 

by the Mathesons and before that Mr John McEntee. Mr Sinclair 

still owns the land and rents it out while he resides in 

Springfield. 

Next is the farm of Ray McCarville which he inherited 

from his father. His brother Wilbur owned a farm nearby 

which was owned previously by Duncan and Angus Gillis. The 

farm land is currently being farmed by Campbell and Burns. 

The farm owned by Mrs. Peter Clark was owned by 

Nick Clark and the land was given to William Clark who gave 

it to his son Peter. The land is now owned by Peter's son 
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Michael. 

The home next to the Clarks is now owned by Austin 

Trainor who bought it from Al Green who bought it from the 

original owner Peter McMahon. 

The house owned by Doctor McGuigan was sold to Watson 

Fyfe who sold it to Mr Clayton Green. This house is now 

owned by Mrs Kay Green, the wife of the late Mr Green. 

Beside the school there are two mobile homes one of 

which is owned by Ronnie Hughes, Clayton Hugheston. The other 

is owned by Mrs. Eleanor Curley mother of the late Norma 

Hughes wife of Clayton Hughes. 

The house next to the school was formerly owned by 

Mrs Martin and is now owned by Mr Alan MacKinnion. The home 

owned by St Clair Stewart was owned by James Trainor. 

The house owned by Alex Murphy was owned by his 

father Jim Murphy. 

The Pius Croken farm was once owned by the Deighans. 

It is now owned and farmed by Pius' son Wilfred. 

This completes the analysis of the history of Emerald, 

but what of the future? 

The Future of Emerald  

The future of Emerald largely depends upon how much 
41) st 

f\* 	the people of Emerald are willing to participate. The Rec 

Centre and the Station should contribute to the social 
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aspects of the community. Things will begin to thrive if 

people are willing to join and work together and create a 

true spirit in the community. 

To conclude , Daniel W. Dafoe aptly summarized the 

challenge of the future• . It would be well to bear in mind 

that the present of today is the future of yesterday and that 

it is what it is because of the human actions and the human 

decisions. " Therefore our future will be exactly what we 

make it. 

Appendix I lists some of the interesting facts about 

Emerald. 

Summary  

The history of Emerald has been traced from when it 

was a wilderness to its present state. Emerald was once a 

thriving village with a number of stores and other commercial 

establishments. However, today the community has only a 

tourist home, a Rec Centre and a Station. Many things occurred 

to cause the decline of the community. 

The factors were first the change in the means of 

transportation. The livery stables, the carriage shop and the 

blacksmith shop were all dependant on the horse as the means 

of transportation. Thus when the automobile replaced the car 

as the primary means of transportation these establishments were 

forced to close. With the decline in rail transportation the 

hotels and the station itself were affected. 
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Fire also took its toll as several establishments were burned 
down and were never rebuilt. 

Even though Emerald is no longer a thriving centre in 

the area it still enjoys community pride and spirit. tfs j,-Joceo 
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Appendix I 

Some Interesting Facts About Emerald  

Oldest man 	Bennett Deighan 

Youngest child Tara Hughes 

Oldest Couple Mr and Mrs Bennett Deighan 

Oldest House 	Mrs Leslie Trainors (see picture below)• 

First Television Clayton Hughes 

First Radio 	James Allen 
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